MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE PAKISTAN COUNCIL OF ARCHITECTS AND TOWN PLANNERS HELD AT NED UNIVERSITY OF ENGINEERING & TECHNOLOGY CITY CAMPUS, KARACHI, ON 15^{TH} APRIL, 2018.

In accordance with the notice, the Annual General Meeting of the Pakistan Council of Architects and Town Planners was to be held at 1830 hrs on Saturday, April 14, 2018 at NED University of Engineering & Technology City Campus, Karachi, under the Chairmanship of Ar. Asad I.A. Khan. However, due to incomplete quorum the meeting was adjourned at 1930 hours and scheduled for Sunday, April 15, 2018 at 1830 hours at NED University of Engineering & Technology City Campus, Karachi as per Clause 8 & 9 of Part III Conduct of Business at Meetings of the Council (Bye Laws) which say:

- 8. The quorum to constitute an annual or extraordinary meeting of the Council shall be fifty: Provided that at a meeting held to seek amendment to these bye-laws the presence at least 20% of the total membership of each discipline shall be necessary.
- 9. If, at the time appointed for a meeting, a quorum is not present the meeting shall not commence until a quorum is present, and if the quorum is not present on the expiration of sixty minutes from the time appointed for the meeting, the meeting shall stand adjourned for the next following day at the same time and place and for such adjourned meeting no quorum shall be required: Provided that if a quorum is not present at an extraordinary general meeting, the meeting shall stand cancelled.

(PART III CONDUCT OF BUSINESS AT MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL)

1.0 AGENDA ITEM NO.1 RECITATION FROM THE HOLY QURAN

- 1.1 With the permission of the Chairman, the meeting commenced with the recitation from the Holy Quran by Plnr. Ayub Tariq Sheikh.
- 1.2 The Chairman, welcomed all the members of the Council and requested the Registrar to formally proceed with the agenda.

A list of members of the Council who attended the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting is attached as Annexure A with these Minutes.

2.0 AGENDA ITEM NO.2 CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD AT HOTEL REGENT PLAZA, KARACHI, ON 29TH APRIL, 2017

2.1 The Registrar informed the participants that the minutes of the last Annual General meeting (AGM), held on 29th April, 2017, are attached as Annex A in the Annual Report 2018. The Registrar informed the participants that, as per prescribed rules and procedure, the Council had circulated the minutes of the last



Annual General Meeting. However, the Council has not received any comments, during the stipulated time. The Registrar requested the members to approve the minutes.

RESOLUTION NO.1

On a motion moved by Ar. Farhatullah Qureshi and seconded by Ar. Atif Osmani, the House unanimously confirmed the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting, held on 29th April, 2017 at Hotel Regent Plaza Karachi.

3.0 AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

The Chairman requested the Registrar, PCATP to present the annual report to the house.

- 3.1 The Registrar PCATP, through a presentation, briefed the audience about the salient features of the annual report 2017-18. The Registrar presented a summary of important activities during the period from April 01, 2017-March 31, 2018. The Registrar informed the strength of the Council with Architects and Town Planners and registration status under Province wise distribution, Gender and age composition report. Composition by Institutions and the change in the composition was also informed.
- 3.2 It was informed that during the period April 01, 2017- March 31, 2018 the Council had received a total number of **730** applications (593 for registration as Architect and 137 for registration as Town Planner). Out of this, the Council has registered **582** Architects and **135** Town Planners, remaining applications are under process.
- 3.3 The Registrar informed that the total number of architects registered with the Council as of March 30, 2018 is 6028 while 1266 are registered as town planners with the Council. The Registrar informed that out of 6028 registered architects only 57% are paid up members while the rest stand removed from the register for want of renewal. Furthermore, out of 1266 registered town planners only 51% are paid up town planners of the Council. It was also informed that during the period under report only 26 architects and four town planners had opted for lifetime membership.
- 3.4 The Registrar informed that during the reporting period 4231 renewal notices to Architects and 976 renewal notices were issued to the Town Planners. A total of PKR 3,620,187/- was received against the renewal fee from Architects and a sum of PKR 501,814/- was received against the renewal fee from Town Planners. Total Renewal Fee received is PKR 4,122,001/-. Architects contributed 88% of the renewal fee and Town Planners share was 12%.
- 3.5 The Registrar informed that a total of 20 accreditation visits were conducted to various Architecture/Town Planning programs in Pakistan. The Registrar shared the current status of accreditation of Architecture/Town Planning programs in the country and said that the latest list of accredited and non-accredited programs is available on our website and the list will soon be advertised in the newspapers for the information of



students/parents and degree awarding institutions. The Registrar informed that 88% contribution came from accreditations. It was also informed that 11 out of 35 were accredited programs. The Council granted NOC to 10 institutions.

- 3.6 The Registrar said that the Executive Committee of the Council would like to record its gratitude and appreciation to those Architects and Town Planners to accomplish assessment process of accreditation.
- 3.7 The Registrar informed that registration examination for obtaining PCATP registration for the non-accredited batches of BUITEMS, University of Gujarat, COMSATS Lahore and 2 candidates of Al-Khair University (through Court Orders) was conducted to enroll architecture graduates of non-accredited B. Arch programs.
- 3.8 The Registrar also informed the Council received 14 registration requests from graduates of Oriental College of Arts, University of Sargodha and 14 from graduates of Al-Khair University. Both B. Arch programs are non-accredited by the Council and hence the Executive Committee did not process the request further as a result 8 applicants filed a Writ Petition No. 1099 of 2018 in Lahore.
- 3.9 The Registrar informed that the Council conducted four registration examinations for non-accredited batches of BUITEMS, Quetta and for candidates whose registration was revoked last year by the PCATP Enrollment Committee (cases of migration from non-accredited program to an accredited program).
- Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan questioned ruling by Court for Al-Khair University as the exam is only for existing universities and Al-Khair University does not exist. Ar. Azhar Mamoon Sualehi explained the students went to court again and appealed. The Chairman said the Council will go by the Court ruling. Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan said there has to be a formula for such cases. Ar. Azhar Mamoon Sualehi explained that the two cases of Oriental College and Al-Khair University were unique cases and since the universities were closed down, no further cases are expected to come. As such the Council also cannot take any action against the University that does not exist. These cases will have to be dealt with on as and when required basis.
- 3.10 The Registrar informed that Two ZC3 workshops were conducted at Makli Goth, Thatta by Heritage Foundation in collaboration with PCATP, Culture Department Government of Sindh and INTBAU. The workshop was led by Ar. Yasmeen Lari along with Ar. Tariq A. Qaiser and Ar. Ghazala Majeed. Altogether twenty three students from DUET, BUITEMS, SSUET, MUET, UOK and Superior University attended the workshop at Makli Goth, Thatta.
- 3.11 The house was informed that PCATP and HF (Heritage Foundation of Pakistan) has initiated a series of lectures by Architect Yasmeen Lari. These will be delivered in Architectural and Town Planning institutions interested in presenting an alternative point of view to their students and faculty in a rapidly changing world. Among the topics to be discussed will be heritage management, vernacular traditions, zero carbon footprint and hybrid structures, climate change impact and disaster risk.



The Chairman added that this lecture series is a generous move initiated by Mrs. Lari. Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan agreed and said it is commendable.

- 3.12 The house was informed that the Pakistan Council of Architects and Town Planners was commissioned by Higher Education Commission (HEC) Islamabad to organize and conduct a single stage nationwide Architectural Design Competition open to all PCATP Registered Architects for the HEC Secretariat Building at Sector H-8, Islamabad. PCATP shared the prequalification documents with the HEC officials and jury members. 12 firms were shortlisted for the competition.
- 3.13 The Jury of Assessors awarded the First Prize to Entry No. 078692/4 submitted by Ar. Iftikhar Mahmood Azam of M/s h3 Consultants, Karachi and the Architect of Entry No. 109901/5, Ar. Abdul Qayyum Khan earned the Second Prize.
- 3.14 The Registrar informed the house about Design Competition in Six Divisional Headquarters of KP Conducted through Urban Policy Unit (UPU), Planning & Development Department, Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. The Pakistan Council of Architects and Town Planners was commissioned by UPU, Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa to organize and conduct a single stage nationwide Architectural Design Competition open to all PCATP Registered Architects for Beautification Concepts in Six Divisional Headquarters of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. PCATP received expression of interest to participate in the competition from 33 Architects/ Architectural Firms. Only 21 Architects/architectural Firms submitted prequalification documents. UPU after reviewing the detailed information submitted by Architects/firms shortlisted all the participants (21) for the competition. Out of 21 contestants only 13 Architects/ firms submitted their designs. A total of 32 entries were submitted by Architects for ten different schemes/projects which were considered by the jury. The jury decided not to select any entry for 3 projects as they were not satisfied with the overall quality of design submissions. The house was informed about the winners of the designs selected for seven schemes/projects who were awarded by the Jury.

The Chairman and Ar. Arif Changezi complimented and congratulated Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan on winning three competitions out of thirteen submissions.

3.15 The Registrar informed the house that The PCATP Executive Committee in its 106th meeting approved the launch of a prestigious award in the name of the founder and first Chairperson of PCATP and first female Architect of Pakistan Mrs. Yasmeen Lari. The award launches with acceptance by Architect Yasmeen Lari. The award will be scheduled every two years and first call for nominations will be announced through invitation to registered Architects and Town Planners in April 2018. Nominations will be received by PCATP till August 2018. The jury will be held and results will be announced around November 2018.

Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan said it is commendable to honor Ar. Yasmeen Lari. Ar. Arif Changezi inquired about the criteria for selection of jurors. The age cap and title were also questioned by most participants. Ar. Zaigham Jaffery suggested the name "PCATP Yasmeen Lari Award" instead of earlier announced title

"Yasmeen Lari Award for Ethical Architecture and Eco-Development". He also suggested that notification be sent by email to members for the call for nominations. The participants also commented on only one planner being part of the Jury and suggested that one more planner be added.

Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan asked if individuals or firms could be nominated and if it could cause conflict in case both employee and employer would be nominated.

RESOLUTION NO.2

On a motion proposed and moved by Ar. Zaigham Jaffery and seconded by Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan, the House approved the suggested title of award as "PCATP Yasmeen Lari Award for Architecture and Town Planning" instead of earlier announced title "Yasmeen Lari Award for Ethical Architecture and Eco-Development"

- 3.16 The Registrar informed the house that meeting of the Steering Committee on Firms Registration was held to review the existing criteria for firm registration. Firm Registration modalities for inviting EA&P Firms with PCATP and inclusion of allied contractors/interior designing firms for registration with PCATP was discussed and recommendations were later presented to the Executive Committee for approval. The members were briefed that the Council has successfully registered up to 96 Architectural firms and 12 Town Planning firms up till now in various categories.
- 3.17 The Registrar acknowledged the contribution of architects Syed Zaigham. S. Jaffery, Ejaz Ahed, Imran A. Farooqi, Tariq Rasool and Plnr. Masood ul Hassan Jafri in revising the document for Firms Registration. Council extended gratitude to these senior architects/planners for their time and expertise.
- 3.18 The Registrar informed the house that the Council has successfully registered total of 108 firms out of which 96 are architectural firms and 12 town planning firms in various categories that have been revised. The Registrar showed graphs of category wise details and informed that members can refer to our website at www.pcatp.org.pk.
- Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan asked if new certificates would be issued mentioning the revised categories. The Registrar affirmed in positive and told the house that with all renewals new certificates would be issued if categories are changed.
- Ar. Atif Osmani pointed that architects and planners are fewer in numbers as such the Council should not narrow down on categorization.
- Ar. Zaigham Jaffery pointed that in case of NESPAK the organization was never issued a certificate only individuals were given certificates. The Chairman responded that NESPAK though is involved in major projects in Pakistan but the firm is not registered with the PCATP.
- Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan pointed out that Architecture firms should be allowed to hire engineers.



3.19 The Registrar informed the house the status of court cases with PCATP. The first case was Writ Petition No. 40553 of 2015 – Ms. Asia Jabeen & Mr. Mazhar Munir vs. Federation of Pakistan & others at Lahore High Court_This W. P No. 40553/2015 was filed against PCATP by Mr. Mazhar Munir & Ms. Asia Jabeen, at Lahore High Court. Chairman PCATP after taking charge of the office on April 01, 2017 initiated dialogue with Mr. Mazhar Munir and upon receiving written request from Asia Jabeen and Mazhar Munir, Chairman PCATP restored their membership with the Council on the condition that court cases against PCATP will be withdrawn. After restoration of their membership with the Council the case has been withdrawn from the Lahore High Court.

Ar. Anjum Adil objected to the writ petition that finished with apology and considered it as failure of the Council. Ar. Zaigham Jaffery pointed out that being forgiven after an apology is not acceptable and in any such situation the members should be informed. The Council has to differentiate between an offender and members of the community sitting together.

Ar. Azhar Sualehi told the house that this issue has been taken care of in the recommended bye-laws.

3.20 The Registrar informed that the second case was a complaint filed by Mr. Kaleem Ahmed regarding delay in issuance of PCATP membership with Wafaqi Mohtasib Secretariat Islamabad. The complainant submitted "that he has been working as approved Architect & Draftsman of TMA Municipal Corporation, Rawalpindi and now the Government has made membership of PCATP as compulsory for job as an Architect. He further submitted that his late father was an approved Architect and a member of PCATP. He requested that the agency may be directed to transfer license of his father to his name and he may also be declared approved Architect".

PCATP submitted the response and in view of our response the complaint was rejected by the Wafaqi Mohtasib Islamabad. The findings states that "as per report of Agency, is no such provision exists under PCATP Ordinance IX of 1983 to transfer father's enlistment to his son. Moreover, Certificate or Diploma in Architecture did not qualify a person for registration with PCATP as an Architect as there is no such provision of enlistment as "Draftsman" under the Ordinance. In view of the stated position, no interference is called further. There is no maladministration on the part of the Agency".

"In view of the above, the complaint is rejected in terms of Regulation 23 (3) of the Wafaqi Mohtasib (Investigation and Disposal of Complaints) 2013".

3.21 The third case was a complaint filed by Ar. Samra Mohsin Khan & faculty of Department of Architecture, COMSATS Institute of Information Technology, Islamabad against Ar. Hammad Husain. COMSATS Islamabad informed PCATP that Mr. Hammad Husain had filed a writ petition (WP No. 1221 of 2017) against COMSTAS Islamabad through Chairman of Board of Governors, Rector/ In charge Islamabad Campus and 7 others at Islamabad High Court and Honorable Court has further directed "Meantime, status quo shall be maintained".



Chairman PCATP has advised the Inquiry Committee not to continue with this case any further as there is no need for the Council to be an arbiter in the matter which is already taken to the Court.

3.22 The Registrar informed the house about the cases of illegal practice of architecture by non-registered persons. Ar. Jabran Niazi (A-03708) and Ar. Ali Zafar Qazi (A-01147) through email invited attention of PCATP on two non-professionals companies titled M/s Mohsin Shaheen Construction Company, Lahore and M/s Naqshaz Islamabad undertaking Architecture and Planning projects in Pakistan. PCATP issued a show cause notice to both the firms. No response was received from both the firms after which Legal notice was served to them and both complied with the legal notice and have submitted firm registration request through PCATP registered Architect.

Ar. Anjum Adil commented that reminders should be sent. The Chairman replied it is a constant battle.

- 3.23 The Registrar informed about the Imposition of Licensing Fee on PCATP Registered Architects & Town Planners. A number of complaints from Architects from Faisalabad were received in PCATP office regarding imposition of licensing fee on PCATP registered Architects & Town Planners by Faisalabad Development Authority (FDA). Letter was sent to Director General FDA requesting that this renewal fee should immediately be withdrawn and notice published by FDA in this regard with intimation to the Council. No response has been received so far. Reminder has been issued to FDA again.
- 3.24 The Registrar informed the house that Council is fully aware of pre-qualification notices appearing in national newspapers by public and private sector organizations and informed about the action taken by Council on Pre-qualification Notices/ EOI appearing in National Newspapers. PCATP has written 23 letters to the concerned departments. The response is not very encouraging but few organizations have accepted our plea and have issued pre-qualification/EOI requests fulfilling Council's long awaited demand
- 3.25 The Registrar informed the house on the status of Rawalpindi Housing Scheme and that there has been no progress on the scheme. As per Executive Committee decision refund of the original amount to the RHS members is being given with an undertaking that if PCATP gains any profit after sale of RHS land, proportionate share on their deposited amount and its period of retention with PCATP shall be paid to them or to their legal heirs accordingly. During the reporting period a total of PKR 483,000/- was refunded to seven RHS members. Following is the overall status of RHS refunds:

S.No	Description	Total	No. of Members	Total Amount	Amount	Amount
		Members	Opted for Refund	Received	Refunded	Payable
1.	Category-D	522	107 (21%)	19,462,426	5,622,677	13,839,749
2.	Category-C	123	31 (25%)	3,070,806	1,102,800	1,968,006
	Total	645	138	22,533,232	6,725,477	15,807,775



4.0. AGENDA ITEM NO.4. PRESENTATION OF THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT ON PCATP GENERAL FUND AND RHS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016- 17

- 4.1 The Audited Accounts for the financial year 2016- 2017 were presented before the members to make any comments. The Registrar informed the members that during the reporting period the Council continues the practice of economizing expenditure to the maximum and has adopted strict measures to cut down expenses and to raise funds from all possible sources. All possible efforts have been made to reduce the expenditure on administration without affecting the efficiency of the office.
- 4.2 The Registrar informed that the audited accounts for the Council General Fund and Auditor's Report for the financial year 2016 2017 may be seen at Annex L and M.
- 4.3 Ar. Zaigham Jaffery showed his concern about the audited accounts of three months after AGM while actual year 2017-18 will close on 30 June 2018. It was also suggested that the fiscal year be changed. Ar, Anjum Adil suggested if the auditors are unable to accommodate the change the audit firm should be changed. Ar. Azhar Mamoon Sualehi pointed out that there has been no deviation in expenses that were budgeted last year. Ar. Kamran Ansari suggested that the AGM can be conducted after the financial year to avoid this issue.

RESOLUTION NO.3

On a motion moved by Ar. Atif Inam Osmani and seconded by Ar. M. Fazal Noor, the Council adopted and approved the audited accounts of the Council & RHS for the year 2016-2017.

Change of fiscal year to be taken up in next Executive Committee Meeting.

5.0 AGENDA ITEM NO.5. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR 2018-2019

- 5.1 The Registrar informed the members that while following the example of preceding years, the Council has annexed the detailed anticipated and actual budget in Annual Report. The Registrar invited the members to examine the balance and make comments, if any, on the budget.
- 5.2 Ar. Zaigham Jaffery pointed that the budget presented for the years 2018-19 was not enough and needed to be increased. The expense for PCATP Islamabad office in particular was doubled from 2,400,000 to **4,800,000** which was agreed upon by the members present.

- 5.3 Ar. Fazal Noor and Ar. Zaigham Jaffery suggested that an additional column should be shown alongside the proposed budget to show actual expenditure for comparison. The suggestion was agreed upon and noted.
- 5.4 Ar. Farhatullah Qureshi inquired about how the finances would be generated for the Yasmeen Lari Award. The Registrar informed that initially PCATP will fund the award but later an endowment fund would be created for the purpose.
- 5.5 The proposed budget was deliberated in detail by the house and was approved through the following resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 4

On a motion moved by Ar. Fazal Noor and seconded by Ar. Atif Inam Osmani the Annual Budget after the changes made in expenses for PCATP Islamabad office to **4,800,000** was approved for the financial year 2018-2019. It was also decided to produce the budgeted and actual incurred expenditure in next AGM.

6.0. <u>AGENDA ITEM NO.6</u> ANY OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY BE PLACE BEFORE THE MEETING BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OR AS THE MEETING MAY DECIDE.

6- 1 Bye-Laws Amendment

- 6.1.1 Ar. Zaigham Jaffrey pointed out the need for an additional column with reasoning and rationale for the amendments, which could have helped discuss the points in much more detail. He also asked for the revision to be sent to members for review. He also maintained that the intention of the Council should be to ensure that a maximum number of members read the documents. For this hard copies of the revision should be couriered to members rather than emails or uploading on the website only. The dissent was noted.
- 6.1.2 Ar. Farhatullah Qureshi raised the issue of required quorum. 20% requirement from each field.
- 6.1.3 Ar. Zaigham Jaffery questioned who will be responsible for the ballots. He also agreed with objection raised by Ar. Farhatullah Qureshi on Bye-law # 40 and said authority should not rest with the Executive Committee as this will cause favoritism and will politicize the new Election Committee.
- 6.1.4 Ar. Arif Changezi suggested development of application and hiring of company for electronic election system. Ar. Sikandar Hayat suggested NTC could be used. Ar. Atif Inam Osmani suggested NADRA office could be used for voting. Ar. Azhar Sualehi told the PEC has electronic system of election and it is very expensive.
- 6.1.5 Plnr. Mubushar Hussain objected to 64 D and said adding 3 more layers will only add to complexity. Ar. Zaigham Jaffery agreed to his point. Ar. Sikandar Hayat suggested there should be a different evaluation criteria for test. It was suggested that categories be deleted. Ar. Arif Changezi suggested old system to be adopted and executive committee not to go.



6.1.6 Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan suggested addition of CPD with full format in the Bye-laws amendment as great effort has gone into preparing this during his tenure.

RESOLUTION NO. 3	
Proposed Bye-law- 7	Change video conferencing to available electronic means
Proposed Bye-law- 8	Quorum required to seek amendment to bye-laws shall be 75 valid members
Proposed Bye-law- 25	Election conclusion- 10 working days
Proposed Bye-law- 26	Add "Standard" operating procedures
Proposed Bye-law- 31	Publication of notice in 2 National Dailies add one English and one Urdu
	c) Polling shall be held through <i>Electronic means</i>
Proposed Bye-law- 39	Addition of one member from Federal Capital
Proposed Bye-law- 41	Electronic balloting system for all. Rules and regulations to be decided in Executive
	Committee meeting
Proposed Bye-law- 64	Board of Accreditation for Architecture and Town Planning to have representatives
	one from each province and one from education/ academia with HEC and PCATP
	representatives (Chairman and Registrar)
	Delete 64- 2d regarding grading of institutions. Accreditation guide to be merged
	with these bye-laws (Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan)

New Bye-laws for Licensing of Firms- 1.8 Add word "firm(s)" in Category details

Do not ask for Tax returns only NTN required

New Bye-law- p.12 line 12- Add "PCATP" registered Architects

New Bye-law- p.12 Shares belonging to be on case to case basis depending on AE or EA firms

New Bye-law- p.16 #1, 2 and 3 to be reviewed and matched with PEC. Indemnity on owner and not on Architect.

Ar. Zaigham Jaffery approved the registration of Firms and Contractors. Ar. Sikandar Hayat seconded the motion. Firms and Contractors' registration document to be formatted and distributed with a letter signed by Chairman PCATP to be circulated to all members. The response time bound after which an emergency meeting to be called for final decision.

On a motion moved by Ar. Zaigham Jaffery and seconded by Ar. Sikandar Hayat Khan, the Council adopted and approved the Bye-laws amendments and New Bye-laws with the above changes.



6-3 Vote of Thanks

CLOSING COMMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN, PCATP

The Chairman PCATP Ar. Asad I.A. Khan thanked the Executive Committee Members and the participants especially for joining the AGM on the second day and for their time and contribution in the AGM 2018.

Dated: 25-04-2018 Ar. Asad I. A.

Khan

Chairman



PAKISTAN COUNCIL OF ARCHITECTS AND TOWN PLANNERS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON SUNDAY APRIL 15, 2018

AT NED UNIVERSITY CITY CAMPUS, KARACHI

S.NO	REG NO	<u>NAME</u>
1.	A00090	TAHIRA SADIA FAZLI
2.	P00227	TAHIRA SADIA FAZLI
3.	A01026	M ARIF CHANGEZI
4.	A00725	ANJUM ADIL
5.	A00720	ASAD I.A. KHAN
6.	A01177	ATIF INAM OSMANI
7.	A01961	ASIF AHMED USMANI
8.	A00432	FARHATULLAH QURESHI
9.	A00386	SIKANDAR HAYAT KHAN
10.	A00111	AZHAR MAMOON SUALEHI
11.	P00222	AZHAR MAMOON SUALEHI
12.	A01602	ANILA NAEEM
13.	A00232	NAJMI HASSAN
14.	A00506	SYED ZAIGHAM S. JAFFERY
15.	A02989	M FAZAL NOOR
16.	P00154	ABDUL HALIM
17.	P00032	AYUB TARIQ SHEIKH
18.	P00342	MUBUSHAR HUSSAIN
19.	A02358	SAIMA SABIT ALI
20.	A01772	SAJID KHAN
21.	A03519	NASEER AHMED KHAN
22.	A02200	KAMRAN ANSARI
23.	A02450	ATEEQ AHMED QURESHI